
 

RESOLUTION 23-01 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING CHECK SIGNERS FOR THE SOUTHWEST COLORADO COUNCIL OF 
GOVERNMENTS’ BANK ACCOUNTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Southwest Colorado Council of Governments holds and maintains multiple bank 
accounts; and, 
 
WHEREAS, each of these accounts require there be designated signers on each checking 
account; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SWCCOG Executive Committee believes it is prudent to review the designated 
signers on each of the bank accounts and add and remove signers based on attrition.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Region 9 Board of Directors that the following changes will 
be made to the following bank accounts: 
 
1. Assign Mark Garcia as a signer on the following bank accounts:  
 a. Alpine Bank, checking account ending in xxxx7350 
 b. Alpine Bank, money market account ending in xxxx7883 
 
2. Remove Andrea Phillips from the Alpine Bank, checking account ending in xxxx7350. 
 
 
Adopted this 27th day of July, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the Southwest Colorado Council 
of Governments. 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Jennifer Green, Chair 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Mark Garcia, Secretary/Treasurer 



Jan - Jun 23

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4010 - Grants - Admin 1,370.13
4020 - Grants - Program 122,945.08
4090 - Membership Dues 3,853.00
4170 - Match 5,204.66
4190 - Reimbursed Expenses 15,260.00
4400 - Fee for Shared Services 19,954.44
4910 -Dark Fiber Leases 42,575.20
4960 - Region 9 support 121,935.99
unknown 4,809.82

Total Income 337,908.32

Gross Profit 337,908.32

Expense
5110 - Wages 13,127.66
5120 - Payroll Taxes 168.07
5135 - Retirement Expense 63.34
5140 - Workers' Comp Insurance -92.85
5145-FAMLI 9.49
5150 - Health Expense 252.33
5335 - Grant Expense 98,731.90
5410 - Rent Expense 1.00
5426 Fiber lease expense 14,783.77
5510 - Travel Expense 5,845.83
5512 - Meeting Expense 135.93
5515 - Legal Fees 1,464.50
5520 -Advertising and Promotion 47.71
5527 Internet/Computer/Software 43,234.31
5532 - Postage & Delivery 8.13
5540 - Memberships/Subs 17,593.44
5550 - Supplies 140.00
5635 -Shared Services 5,675.00
5640 - Other Consulting Fees 132,664.29

Total Expense 333,853.85

Net Ordinary Income 4,054.47

2:19 PM SW Colorado Council of Governemnts
07/21/23 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through June 2023

Page 1



Jan - Jun 23

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

1310- Interest 250.40

Total Other Income 250.40

Net Other Income 250.40

Net Income 4,304.87

2:19 PM SW Colorado Council of Governemnts
07/21/23 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through June 2023

Page 2



Jun 30, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1040- Alpine 7350- Checking 132,092.80
Alpine ending 7883 Money Fund 20,868.42

Total Checking/Savings 152,961.22

Accounts Receivable
1200- Accounts Receivable 18,581.82

Total Accounts Receivable 18,581.82

Total Current Assets 171,543.04

TOTAL ASSETS 171,543.04

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 95,512.54

Total Accounts Payable 95,512.54

Other Current Liabilities
2001 - Payroll Liabilities 5,637.73
2100 - All Payroll- Other 3,011.80
2120 - AP Other 64.78

Total Other Current Liabilities 8,714.31

Total Current Liabilities 104,226.85

Total Liabilities 104,226.85

Equity
Unrestricted Net Assets 63,011.32
Net Income 4,304.87

Total Equity 67,316.19

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 171,543.04

2:19 PM SW Colorado Council of Governemnts
07/21/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2023

Page 1


	1 July 2023 Board agenda
	A. Lunch  11:00 pm
	B. Call Region 9 EDD Quarterly Meeting to Order - Willy Tookey 11:30 am
	1. Welcome and Introductions

	C. Amendments to the Agenda
	D. Election of Board members (Action Required) 11:45 am 11
	1. Leigh Reeves – Town of Dolores
	2. Olivier Bosmans – City of Durango

	E. Consent Agenda (Action Required)
	1. Board of Director’s Quarterly Meeting Minutes from April 28, 2023 15
	2. Executive Committee/Audit Meeting Minutes from June 15, 2023 35
	3. Loan Compliance Review (Q3, Q4 2022; Q1 2023)
	4. Loan Loss Allowance June 30, 2023 69

	F. Financial Report - Shirley Jones 12:00 pm
	1. Approve Financial Statements through June 30, 2023      93
	2. Audit engagement for next fiscal year (Action Required)
	3. Resolution #23-10 Update Bank Check signers
	4. Alignment of SWCCOG and Region 9 fiscal year

	G. Business Loan Fund - Jenny Stollar & Brian Rose 12:10 pm
	1. Portfolio and Delinquency Report (Confidential) and New Loans 165
	2. Loan Production Spreadsheet
	3. Tax Lien Program Proposal 166

	H. Executive Director Report
	1. Confirm membership dues for 2024 (Action Required)
	2. Strategic Plan Update (Action Required)
	3. Staffing Update
	4. Funding and Grant Navigator Update

	I. Program Reports  12:30 pm
	1. Enterprise Zone – Laura Lewis Marchino
	a. Resolution #23-08 - San Juan Development Association (Action Required) 179
	b. Resolution #23-09 – Crow Canyon Archeological Center (Action Required) 193
	c. Resolution #23-11 – Fort Lewis College Foundation Nursing Collaborative (Action Required)
	d. Resolution #23-12 – Fort Lewis College Foundation Sky Pavilion & Community Gardens (Action Required) 205
	d. Resolution #23-12 – Fort Lewis College Foundation Sky Pavilion & Community Gardens (Action Required) 205

	2. Regional Project - Shak Powers
	a. Broadband
	b. Housing
	c. Transportation 217

	3. Economic Development - Heather Otter
	a. SWORD Council
	i. Feasibility Study
	b. Economic Development Updates


	J. Adjourn Region 9 Meeting 1:00 pm
	A. Call SWCCOG Meeting to Order – Jennifer Green, Chair 1:05 pm
	B. Consent Agenda (Action Required)
	1. Resolution #23-01 SWCCOG Check Signers
	2. SWCCOG Audit Engagement  241

	C. Financial Report
	1. SWCCOG 2022 Audit Draft
	2. SWCCOG Financial Statements – June 30, 2023 (Action Required)
	D. Other Business 1:15 pm
	1. Next Board Meeting:       Thursday, September 28, 2023
	2. Round Robin Updates

	E. Adjourn SWCCOG Meeting 2:00 pm

	2 July 27, 2023 Board Agenda Notes1
	D. Board Member Elections (Action Required)
	E. Consent Agenda (Action Required)
	1. Board of Director’s Quarterly Board Meeting Minutes from April 28, 2023
	2. Executive Committee Meeting Minutes from June 15, 2023
	3. Loan Compliance Review for Q3, Q4 and Q1 (2023)
	4. Loan Loss Adjustment (FYI)

	F. Financial Report (Action Required)
	1. Approve Financial Statements through June 30, 2023
	2. Audit Engagement for next fiscal year
	3. Resolution #23-10 Update Check Signers
	4. Discussion of Aligning SWCCOG and Region 9 fiscal year
	The Region Board of Directors has had previous discussions about aligning the Region 9 and SWCCOG fiscal year-ends.  Initially, the thought was that the SWCCOG fiscal year should remain as the priority, being a government entity, however, both Region ...

	G. Business Loan Fund
	1. Portfolio & Delinquency Report and New Loans (FYI)
	This loan provided working capital for a BBQ food trailer that is open Thur – Sat in various locations around Bayfield, Durango, and Silverton. There were two jobs created.
	d. Meadow Market   $200,000               La Plata
	e. Kustom Diesel Towing   $199,000       Montezuma
	Loan funds helped support the purchase of the property that the Borrower had been operating his business out of (owner occupied commercial real estate). A portion of the funds were used to finance a large boom-arm tow truck in participation with a ban...
	f. Modstreet    $25,000               La Plata
	The company needed short-term working capital and this loan was provided for a 6-month term. The Borrower was able to deliver a large custom order and should have final payment within 60 days.
	g. Barbara Woolsey   $10,000                La Plata
	This funding helped a start-up shaved ice business for an underserved client. Up to $2k in grant funding was offered with the loan through CO Startup Loan Fund.
	h. Reflections in Metal   $75,000   Montezuma
	This loan was for expansion of their location in Cortez. A new paint booth, sand blasting booth, shipping, and inventory storage area is being added to accommodate growth through internet sales.
	i. Deborah Kelroy Fine Art   $15,000             La Plata
	Deborah is a local artist who has been juried into several shows in the Southwest – primarily Colorado and Arizona. Loan funds are to help with registration fees, travel costs and to build a display booth.
	j. 9318 Development Ventures, LLC  $125,000                                     San Juan
	This loan provided capital to complete the construction of an affordable/attainable workforce housing unit in the Anvil Mountain Subdivision, in Silverton as part of a larger project initiative.
	k. Jenni Gross dba Soup Palette  $60,000              La Plata
	This loan will help the Borrower expand into wholesale food products by packaging her dressings and condiments including a pesto mayonnaise.  She continues to do event catering and online orders for pickup.

	2. Loan Production Spreadsheet

	B. Executive Director Report
	1. Confirm membership dues for 2024. (Action Required)
	In your packet is a spreadsheet showing the Region 9 annual dues amount divided among all 17 governmental jurisdictions by population. Region 9 dues were raised last fiscal year due to the integration of the SWCCOG.  SWCCOG members saw a reduction in ...
	2. Strategic Plan Update (Action Required)

	C. Program Reports
	1. Enterprise Zone
	2. In your packet are four Enterprise Contribution Projects requesting Board approval.  Each Project will be able to provide a 5 minute overview with time for questions.
	a. Resolution #23-08 – Crow Canyon (Action Required)
	b. Resolution #23-09 - San Juan Development Association (Action Required)
	c. Resolution #23-11 Fort Lewis College Foundation’s Nursing Collaborative
	In your packet is a Contribution Project application from Fort Lewis College to support the development and launch of a four-year nursing degree program at Fort Lewis College with the first graduation co-hort expected in May 2027.   Melissa Mount, Vic...
	The recommended action is to approve Resolution #23-11 as presented.
	d. Resolution #23-12 Fort Lewis College Sky Pavilion and Cultural Garden
	In the board packet is a second application for Fort Lewis College to construct a Sky Pavilion and Cultural Garden to serve as a gathering space and outdoor event location.  Melissa Mount will also be able to discuss this project.
	The recommended action is to approve Resolution #23-12 pending any needed edits.

	3. Regional Project - Shak Powers
	In your packet is a detailed report with photos and highlights of activities since the last board meeting.
	a. Broadband
	 NTIA – Did not receive grant, regrouping and reprioritizing.
	 Regional Broadband Roadmap completed and distributed.
	 CBO – Broadband for All Summit was a success.
	 La Plata Carrier Neutral Location (CNL) – construction is underway (see included photos)
	 Speed Testing software (Opti Map) - Region 9 staff and broadband team leads were trained to use and have deployed the newly acquired software.
	 Broadband Ready Communities – Continuing to work towards certifying regional jurisdictions.
	 SCAN system audit – Contract has been executed and audit has begun on SCAN fiber.
	 Capital Project Funding (CPF) – Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, and Montezuma working with Internet Service Providers to apply.

	b. Housing
	 Attended Colorado Mountain Housing Conference
	 Facilitated a tour of Region 9 for the Division of Housing/CHFA
	 Ute Mountain Ute Housing and Master Planning continues. Region 9 is administering the grant.
	 Continued to work with DOH/CHFA regarding Proposition 123 Baselines
	 City of Cortez – Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Policy Steering Committee.
	 Began working with the Town of Dove Creek regarding the Big Canyon Water Pipeline project.

	c. Transportation

	4. Economic Development - Heather Otter
	a. SWORD Council: Region 9 has been facilitating monthly SWORD meetings and applied for funds to help with contractor implementation support as this effort requires additional staff time and resources.  Health Management Associates (HMA) presented a s...
	b. Economic Development Updates: Region 9 EDD co-hosted with Tommy Crosby (City of Durango) to bring economic development staff and grant writers from across the region to participate in the quarterly Eco Devo Meet Up on July 14th in Durango. Themes f...
	San Juan Development Association (SJDA) – The organization is hiring for the role of Community Project and Sustainability Coordinator to work with Beth Kremer. This person will be responsible for advancing several priority projects identified in the 2...
	Dolores County Development Corporation (DCDC) – The DCDC Board decided to adjust its business meeting schedule from monthly to quarterly, add a consent agenda, and incorporate time on the agenda for addressing strategic goals and grant opportunities. ...
	La Plata Economic Development Alliance (Alliance) – The Alliance is preparing for its annual Summit. This year it will be held on September 21st at the Sky Ute Casino Resort in Ignacio. The event is titled Leading With Heart and the focus will be on e...
	Pagosa Springs Community Development Corporation (CDC) – The CDC is participating on and spearheading several projects summarized below:
	New employee Pattie Copenhaver joined the CDC this summer. She is responsible for the Main Street Program in partnership with the Town of Pagosa and overseeing administrative duties for the CDC.
	Workforce Development: The CDC is supporting workforce development efforts through partnering with local businesses and schools and providing grant funding. The CDC was recently awarded more than one workforce grant including $50k from Colorado NOW. T...
	Broadband: The CDC is the pass-through organization for a $2M EIAF grant. DOLA will fund almost $900K. The CNL building has been placed across from the Parelli entrance. They have been working on a lease with LPEA for 30 years. All broadband assets be...
	Workforce Housing: Initial discussions are being had between employers, banks, Town, County, CDC, and developers around workforce housing. Deed restrictions are being explored. Reduction in fees has been discussed with the County. The CDC is working o...
	Montezuma County Economic Development (MCED) – Montezuma County Economic Development was awarded a $26k EDO Grant which will be used for developing a community prospectus in conjunction with a website including SEO and professional photography and vid...
	Montezuma County Commissioners allocated funds to provide clean up opportunities for residents living in the unincorporated part of the county. This proved successful for incentivizing residents to do spring cleanup around their property but also allo...
	MCED is working to promote and enhance the Montezuma County Fairgrounds as a multi-use, community friendly venue. MCED was awarded a $10k grant from the LORE Foundation to create a gathering space for people with emergent businesses to connect and dis...
	Work continues on implementing the Resiliency Roadmaps and Montezuma Community Collective projects and the Town of Mancos and City of Cortez economic development partners as well. This is for the Board’s information.
	SWCCOG Board of Directors Meeting


	B. Consent Agenda
	1. Resolution #23-01 SWCCOG Check Signers
	2. SWCCOG Audit Engagement
	C. Financial Report
	1. SWCCOG 2022 Audit
	2. SWCCOG Financial Statements – June 30, 2023 (Action Required)

	3 Resume - Leigh Reeves
	4 Olivier Bosmans bio
	5 April 2023 Board Minutes
	I. Call the Meeting to Order
	II. Region 9 Strategic Planning Session – Suzanne Phare
	III. Working Lunch Break
	IV. Amendments to the Agenda - None
	V. Election of Board Members
	A. Bernadette Cuthair was approved by the Ute Mt Ute Tribal Council to serve on the Region 9 Board but has not been formerly appointed by the Board.
	B. The City of Durango will confirm a Board Representative and Alternate on May 2nd.
	C. Alex Lanis is interested in the San Juan County at-large position. Alex attended the Board meeting to introduce himself and his member documents were included in the packet.

	VI. Consent Agenda
	A. Board of Director’s Quarterly Meeting Minutes,  January 26 , 2023
	B. Executive Committee Meeting Minutes,  April 17  , 2023
	C. Resolution #23-02 Rural Statewide EDA RLF Plan Approval 41 4.
	1) Resolution 23-02 and the DRAFT Rural Statewide EDA-RLF Plan were included in the Board packet. The Statewide EDA grant was disbursed and entered the revolved phase until funds are defederalized. The three co-grantees, including Region 9, agreed to ...

	D. Loan Loss Adjustment March 31, 2023
	1) The loan loss adjustment summary through March 31, 2023, was included in the Board packet. Due to Region 9’s conversion to a new loan software, the last loan loss adjustment provided was through September 30, 2022. The attached report is an accurat...


	VII. Financial Report
	A. Approval of Financial Statements through  March 31, 2023  .
	B. Audit Financial Statement and Presentation
	1) The audited financials include the Management Discussion and Analysis letter, audited financials, and presentation slides provided by Hinton Burdick. The Region 9 Audit/Executive Committee reviewed the audit at the Executive Committee Meeting on Ap...
	2) The SWCCOG audit for the 2022 calendar year has begun and a draft will be presented at a future Board meeting for review and approval. Currently, Region 9 and the SWCCOG are on different fiscal years.


	VIII. Business Loan Fund (Possible Executive Session, C.R.S. Section 24-6-402-(4)(e))
	A. Portfolio & Delinquency Report
	1) The most recent Loan Portfolio Report was included in the Board packet. The Region 9 Portfolio has reached a total of $11.1M and delinquencies are holding steady at 4% of the total portfolio. An unredacted copy of the allowance for loan loss by cli...
	2) Loans closed since the January Board Meeting include:
	a) La Plata County
	i. Durango RV Rentals, Inc. - $100,000
	ii. Gazpacho’s - $175,000
	iii. Jungle Gym (Summit Fitness) - $125,000
	iv. Alpine Mobile Crete - $50,000
	v. MCK Corp (dba Modstreet) - $46,000
	vi. Mountain Studies Institute - $160,000
	vii. Cedar Enterprises - $81,000
	viii. Durango RV Repair - $125,000
	ix. TDL Recycling - $75,000
	x. Maestas Welding - $25,000

	b) Montezuma County
	i. Montezuma Mexican - $50,000
	ii. LJS Dental Lab - $65,000



	B. Loan Production Spreadsheet
	1) The loan activity tracking, including loans approved and closed as compared to Region 9’s monthly goals was included in the Board packet. For Fiscal Year 2023, staff budgeted loan production at $250,000 of closed loans per month but have been track...

	C. Resolution #23-03 CDBG Contract
	1) Resolution 23-03 to approve Region 9’s application for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds was included in the Board Packet. Region 9 has administered eight CDBG contracts previously with the Office of Economic Development and Internatio...

	D. Disaster Relief Policy Reactivation
	1) With concerns regarding flooding in the region, staff requested reimplementation of the Disaster Assistance Loan Program (DALP) that was originally created for the COVID-19 pandemic. With the reimplementation, a business would be eligible by showin...


	IX. Executive Director Report
	A. Project Updates
	1) Region 9 is terminating an aggregated services contract for broadband internet services that provide discounts to participating Governments. Only three organizations were participating so program management by the SWCCOG was not an efficient use of...
	2) The SWCCOG contract for ZOOM services will be renewed under Region 9 and Laura outreached participants regarding interest in renewal.
	3) Region 9 is administering the SW Transportation Planning Region Committee; the annual contract will transfer to Region 9 from the SWCCOG in July.
	4) Region 9 is drafting numerous contracts for the broadband project. An agreement with Archuleta, Montezuma, and La Plata to share costs for broadband mapping software is in process. The SCAN network audit contract has been finalized, and a portion o...
	5) Sheila Casey, Board member with the Area Agency on Aging (AAA), reached out in March about integrating with Region 9. Region 9 will meet with Sheila and Clyde Church, who also serves on the AAA Board. Many of Colorado’s Regions incorporate the AAA ...

	B. Funding/Grant Updates
	1) Region 9 continues to seek funding opportunities for staff work reimbursement and received State funding for a Grant Navigator for $100K. Tiffany Brodersen, Region 9’s Navigator, and Stephani Burditt can allocate time to these funds in 2023. This p...
	2) Tiffany is working on three Region 9 applications including a Direct Effects Grant to CHFA for about $15K for transit coordination time and a website for transit provider information to incorporate routes into Google Maps. Colorado Broadband Office...
	3) Several Region 9/SWCCOG grants are underway. Work began on the RCDI Grant with the Ute Mt Ute Tribe, and the congressionally designated funding for the feasibility study around opioid treatment. An application for SBA Technical Assistance was submi...


	X. Program Reports
	A. Enterprise Zone - Presented by Terry Blair-Burton
	1) Resolution #23-04 Region 9 Broadband Project
	2) Resolution #23-05 Rico Fire Protection District
	3) Resolution #23 -06 Montezuma Heritage Museum
	The draft application for the Montezuma Heritage Museum was included in the Board Packet. They are requesting designation as an Enterprise Zone Contribution Project (EZCP) and meet Region 9’s Regional EZ goal, which supports projects that enhance or e...


	B. Regional Projects - Presented by Shak Powers (Detailed information was included in the Board Packet)
	1) Broadband
	a) Drafted an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) in anticipation of NTIA Middle Mile Award.
	b) Posted and awarded bids for La Plata Carrier Neutral Location (CNL).
	c) Signed Lease agreement with La Plata County for CNL.
	d) Purchased Mapping Software to help communities prepare for Capital Projects Funding (CPF), and Broadband Equity Access and Deployment (BEAD) funding.
	i. Executed licensing agreements and MOUs with participating jurisdictions.

	e) Started helping communities certify with the Colorado Broadband Office to be “Broadband Ready.”
	i. Archuleta/Pagosa was the third State community to be certified by the CBO.

	f) SCAN System Audit
	i. Worked with SCAN communities to determine audit needs.
	ii. Drafted a contract with auditor, Charlie Powell.
	iii. Drafted MOUs for cost sharing.


	2) Transportation
	a) The annual contract will transfer to Region 9 from the SWCCOG in July.
	b) Region 9 developed a Landing Page for transit service providers.
	c) Staff participated in GTFS Builder technology webinars.
	i. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) is the world standard format for uploading schedule and geographic data to trip planners, such as Google Transit, Apple Maps, Bing and Transit App, etc.
	ii. Region 9 staff will work with regional transit providers to capture and publish their GTFS data.

	d) Worked with the Town of Rico to address the transit needs of Senior citizens.

	3) Housing
	a) DOH released the initial “affordable housing baseline data”.  This data was dramatically different from local conditions.  DOH is “interested and available” to work with local governments to create data sets.  Therefore, Region 9 and Donna Graves r...
	b) Region 9 and several member governments attended the Colorado Mountain Housing Coalition Conference in Buena Vista.


	C. Economic Development – Presented by Heather Otter (Detailed information was included in the Board Packet)
	1) SWORD Council
	a) Project goals and objectives updates - Secondary data analysis began. Key informant interviews and focus groups are occurring through April.
	b) Review of data collection and performance measures - Surveys are underway with SUD providers and other community stakeholders for perspectives on SUD treatment needs not currently being discussed.
	c) Budget Review - Region 9 submitted the first drawdown requests and will continue to drawdown as invoices are received.  The budget, including administration, is on schedule to be fully expended by the deadline. Region 9 will confirm the remaining b...
	d) Programmatic challenges/barriers/successes - The Consultants and Region 9 attend regular progress check-ins prior to monthly meetings with SWORD to address concerns or challenges. The upcoming SWORD meetings will focus on discussions from the key i...

	2) Economic Development Updates
	a) Colorado Resiliency Roadmaps Program - Roadmap plans for Montezuma-Dolores Communities and High Alpine Communities, including Rico and Silverton, have been finalized and submitted to the State. Both Roadmap Plans have been completed and are availab...
	b) Region 9 Quarterly Economic Development Meet-N-Greet - Region 9 co-hosted the year’s first quarterly economic development meet-n-greet event in Pagosa Springs with the Pagosa Springs Community Development Corporation (CDC). These events provide loc...



	XI. Adjourn Region 9
	I. Call SWCCOG meeting to order.
	II. Consent Agenda
	A. Executive Committee Meeting Minutes,  April 10, 2023
	B. Next Region 9 Quarterly Board Meeting

	III. Other Business
	A. Round Robin Community Updates
	1) Archuleta County – Veronica Medina
	a) The County has 22 roads that will be improved this season.
	b) New Health Department development is in process.
	c) An early education council has been formed.  Archuleta is the only County without one in the area, thus, the County continues to improve education in the community.
	d) The Senior Center was selected as 1 of 10 non-profits to benefit from the Durango Wine Event.
	e) In transportation, transit routes have been added from Pagosa Springs to Arboles to provide Seniors with access to doctor’s appointments and shopping.
	f) County Road 500 was washed out and alternate routes will be required during reconstruction.

	2) Archuleta County - Mary Jo Coulehan
	a) Fiber construction begins again on May 1st and construction began on the CNL Building on west side of Town.
	b) Sector Partnerships are groups of specific industries that come together to find solutions to issues within their industry.  Archuleta County has hired a Regional Convenor to help the five Counties in our Sector.
	c) Club 20 will host a policy meeting in Pagosa Springs in July.
	d) 14th Annual Car Show in Pagosa – June 9th & 10th

	3) Pagosa Springs –Jennifer Green
	a) Pagosa’s economy is rebounding from COVID as tourists begin to visit the area again.
	b) Sales Tax has begun to stabilize but is slightly down from the prior year.  Lodging Tax is down due to increased pricing since COVID.
	c) Spring Clean is the week of May 1st.

	4) Dolores County –Steve Garchar and Dan Fernandez
	a) Westside of Dolores where there are 2 accesses to the river were washed out: one repaired, other under repair.
	b) The river was full before the snow melted off.  With the melt off, Dolores County is expecting a huge rafting season.
	c) It is anticipated that fiber optics will be in all homes this year; however, out of Town service was reduced by 15% due to County financial constraints.
	d) Building a new Sheriff’s facility.
	e) Have had housing meetings with the State for development in Dove Creek.  Dove Creek is short infrastructure to support the housing demand.
	f) Dolores County is seeking a Dove Creek Board Member.
	g) The TV Station is operational again.

	5) Ute Mountain Ute Tribe – Bernadette Cuthair
	a) Work continues with the Grocery Store.  Should be operational by May 2024.
	b) The RPF for Broadband on Ute Mt Ute land is being released Mid-May.  Tribe was approached by Tri-State to discuss laying dark fiber across some property.
	c) The Ute Tribe is hosting Tribe Housing retreat at Fort Lewis the week of May 1st.  The retreat will address the restructuring of the Housing Authority as well as provide the new Director with pertinent updates.
	d) Tribe is updating and collaborating with the State on their 2024 CEDS.
	e) There has been much flooding and the Tribe has been coordinating with the State for repair funding.

	6) Town of Ignacio - Mark Garcia
	a) Ignacio is working on a housing project with the Southern Ute Tribe and with Fiber network for funding.
	b) CDOT is improving Main Street.
	c) Infrastructure work continues; Right-of-Way policy is being reviewed to streamline efforts to utilize CDOT ROW for Broadband installation.

	7) La Plata County –Clyde Church & Robert Whitson
	a) Roads are damaged and bridges also need repairs due to the winter season and flooding.  Funds are being moved to cover expenses.
	b) Impact fee was approved for Durango Fire Rescue.
	c) New Health Department development is in process.
	d) CCAT & CCI coordination on House Bill 213.  There has not been a final vote.
	i. CCI was opposed but the Bill has been changing and there has not been a final vote.

	e) Oil & Gas regulations (Senate Bill 181) passed for Colorado on April 25th. This entails a 3 year restructuring of Colorado Oil and Gas Commission, which La Plata County follows for compliance so they have some County control and not just State cont...
	f) Sales Tax is up slightly.
	g) The Radar System contract at the Durango Airport was awarded.  This system will provide Doppler radar coverage in areas that were inadequate.  The contractor is beginning construction.
	h) Job orders and people searching for work have increased.  There are many open job orders.  Currently, unemployment is about 3%.

	8) San Juan County - Willy Tookey
	a) Sales Tax has begun to stabilize but is slightly down from the prior year.  Lodging Tax is down due to increased pricing since COVID.
	b) Backcountry roads have not started opening due to the amount of snow accumulated.
	c) Sunnyside Gold finalized a settlement with the EPA.  Sunnyside is moving out of the area and donating their property to San Juan County.  San Juan County continues to obtain environmental reports and review historical data before taking the land. T...

	9) City of Durango – Tommy Crosby
	a) Broke ground on the Durango Airport Terminal to improve the post-security zones.
	b) The Finance Director retired, a new City attorney was hired with a May start date, and 2 new Counselors were elected.
	c) The 2024 Downtown Colorado Inc. Conference (IN THE GAME A Vibrant Downtown Event) will be held in Durango.
	d) West Slope Start-up Week will be held in Durango August 21st - 25th.

	10) Congresswoman Boebert’s Office - Naomi Dobbs
	a) Congresswomen Boebert has mobile office hours and has a District office in Grand Junction, Durango and Pueblo, locations and hours are posted on the website.

	11) City of Cortez – Kelly Koskie
	a) The City re-incorporated their debt into a loan; now debt free from 3rd party agencies.
	b) Signed the Contract to lease Dark Fiber and Broadband from VERO with a 12-month build-out term.
	c) Draft Housing Assessment is being reviewed and the City hired a consultant for land-use coding evaluation.
	d) The Grant Administrator received over 1M in Grants.



	I. Adjourn SWCCOG

	6 XC - Audit Minutes-June
	A. Call the Meeting to Order
	1. The meeting was called to order at     9:04         am by  Willy Tookey , Board Chair.
	2. Attendees (As marked above)

	B. Business Loan Fund
	1. Reapproval of Meadow Market, LLC $200,000 Loan
	2. Approval of Table to Farm Compost, LLC $400,000 Loan
	3. Approval of new Loan Committee member for Montezuma at-large position
	4. Disaster Assistance Loan Program Revival
	5. CO State Forest Loan Fund

	C. Director’s Report
	1. July meeting agenda
	2. Update on Strategic Plan
	3. Funding & Project Update
	4. Employee Manual Update (FAMLI)

	D. Other Business
	1. Property Tax Lien Option to Fund Housing
	2. Discussion on changing Region 9 fiscal year

	E. Adjourn Meeting

	7 R9 Loan Audit Letter
	8 LLA by fund
	9 6.30.23 Financials
	10 23-10 Check Signers
	11 July Portfolio 2023 redacted
	Active Report

	12 loanproductionFYE23
	12a Region 9 Tax Lien Sale Investment Fund
	13 DUES 2024 - Final
	2020 Census

	14 01 Region 9 Strategic Plan DRAFT 2023-2026
	BACKGROUND
	OUR MISSION
	SWOT Analysis
	Region 9 Economic Development District Pillars
	Enhance Access to Capital
	Recruit, Retain, Expand & Diversify Businesses
	Sustain & Enhance Region 9 as an Organization
	Support Regional Infrastructure
	“Why I Serve on the Region 9 EDD Board of Directors

	15 23-08 Crow Canyon Archaeological Center
	16 23-09 SJDA EZ Designation
	16 23-09 SJDA EZ Designation
	PtContributionProjectP - SJDA
	SJDA LOS 7.10.23

	17 23-11 FLC Foundation Nursing Collaborative
	17 23-11 FLC Foundation Nursing Collaborative
	PtContributionProjectP - FLC Nursing Collaborative
	Chamber of Commerce Nursing LOS
	Durango City Council Letter of Support for FLC Undergraduate Nursing Program
	FLC Nursing Program LOS City of Durango
	LOS Undegraduate Nursing Program Narrow Gauge
	Nursing Program Letter of Recommendation
	Alliance EZ Nursing Letter of Support
	CERT_GS_D (6) - FLC

	18 23-12 FLC Foundation Sky Pavilion and Gardens
	18 23-12 FLC Foundation Sky Pavilion and Gardens
	PtContributionProjectP - Sky Pavilion
	FLC Sky Pavilion Cultural Garden LOS City of Durango
	LOS Chamber Sky Pavilion
	LOS Sky Pavilion Narrow Gauge
	CERT_GS_D (6) - FLC

	19 Broadband, Housing, Transportation Report Q2 2023 desktop copy
	20 Resolution 23-01 SWCCOG Bank Account Signers
	21 SWCCOG 6.23  P&L
	22 SWCCOG 6.23 BS
	July 2023 Board agenda.pdf
	A. Lunch  11:00 pm
	B. Call Region 9 EDD Quarterly Meeting to Order - Willy Tookey 11:30 am
	1. Welcome and Introductions

	C. Amendments to the Agenda
	D. Election of Board members (Action Required) 11:45 am 11
	1. Leigh Reeves – Town of Dolores 15
	2. Olivier Bosmans – City of Durango 18

	E. Consent Agenda (Action Required)
	1. Board of Director’s Quarterly Meeting Minutes from April 28, 2023 19
	2. Executive Committee/Audit Meeting Minutes from June 15, 2023 33
	3. Loan Compliance Review (Q3, Q4 2022; Q1 2023) 42
	4. Loan Loss Allowance June 30, 2023 45

	F. Financial Report - Shirley Jones 12:00 pm
	1. Approve Financial Statements through June 30, 2023      48
	2. Audit engagement for next fiscal year (Action Required)
	3. Resolution #23-10 Update Bank Check signers 66
	4. Alignment of SWCCOG and Region 9 fiscal year

	G. Business Loan Fund - Jenny Stollar & Brian Rose 12:10 pm
	1. Portfolio and Delinquency Report (Confidential) and New Loans 67
	2. Loan Production Spreadsheet 68
	3. Tax Lien Program Proposal 69

	H. Executive Director Report
	1. Confirm membership dues for 2024 (Action Required 73
	2. Strategic Plan Update (Action Required) 74
	3. Staffing Update
	4. Funding and Grant Navigator Update

	I. Program Reports  12:30 pm
	1. Enterprise Zone – Laura Lewis Marchino
	a. Resolution #23-08 - San Juan Development Association (Action Required) 86
	b. Resolution #23-09 – Crow Canyon Archeological Center (Action Required) 96
	c. Resolution #23-11 – Fort Lewis College Foundation Nursing Collaborative (Action Required) 106
	d. Resolution #23-12 – Fort Lewis College Foundation Sky Pavilion & Community Gardens (Action Required) 121
	d. Resolution #23-12 – Fort Lewis College Foundation Sky Pavilion & Community Gardens (Action Required) 121

	2. Regional Project - Shak Powers
	a. Broadband 132
	b. Housing
	c. Transportation

	3. Economic Development - Heather Otter
	a. SWORD Council
	i. Feasibility Study
	b. Economic Development Updates


	J. Adjourn Region 9 Meeting 1:00 pm
	A. Call SWCCOG Meeting to Order – Jennifer Green, Chair 1:05 pm
	B. Consent Agenda (Action Required)
	1. Resolution #23-01 SWCCOG Check Signers 157
	2. SWCCOG Audit Engagement

	C. Financial Report
	1. SWCCOG 2022 Audit Draft
	2. SWCCOG Financial Statements – June 30, 2023 (Action Required)  158
	D. Other Business 1:15 pm
	1. Next Board Meeting:       Thursday, September 28, 2023
	2. Round Robin Updates

	E. Adjourn SWCCOG Meeting 2:00 pm




